
CHEHALIS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
 

CITY HALL 
350 N MARKET BLVD  |  CHEHALIS, WA   98532 

 
 
 

Dennis L. Dawes, Position at Large 
Mayor 

Jerry Lord, District 1   
Daryl J. Lund, District 2, Mayor Pro Tem 
Dr. Isaac S. Pope, District 4                                                                                                                                                                                       

                                                    Anthony E. Ketchum Sr., District 3   
                                                     Robert J. Spahr, Position at Large   
                                                   Michael Bannan, Position at Large                                           

 

 
Regular Meeting of Monday, July 26, 2021 

5:00 pm 
 
 

1. Call to Order.  (Mayor Dawes) 
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance.  (Mayor Dawes)  
 
3. Approval of Agenda. (Mayor Dawes) 
 

 
 

   

CITIZENS BUSINESS (PUBLIC COMMENT) 
Individuals wishing to provide public comments in general and on agenda items should submit comments by 4:00 pm 
on the day of the meeting. All comments received will be acknowledged by the Mayor under Citizens Business of this 
meeting agenda.  Please use the following form to submit comments – https://www.ci.chehalis.wa.us/contact.  If you 
do not have computer access or would prefer to submit a comment verbally, please contact City Clerk Kiley Franz at 
360-345-1042 or at kfranz@ci.chehalis.wa.us.  Public comments will be limited to five (5) minutes. 
 
4. Leah Vanesse – Fireworks  
 

 
 

 
ITEM 

ADMINISTRATION 
RECOMMENDATION PAGE 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
5. Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting of July 12, 2021. (City Clerk) 
 
6. Vouchers and Transfers – Accounts Payable in the Amount of $365,810.88 Dated July 15,  
    2021. (City Manager, Finance Director) 
 
7. Resolution No. 11-2021 – Correcting Duplicate Resolution Numbers (City Manager, City 
Clerk)  
 
8. Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental Appropriations Act (CRRSA) Grant for 

Airports through the New Airport Coronavirus Response Grant Program (ACRGP) – 
Acceptance of Grant Funds. (City Manager, Airport Operations Coordinator)  

 

APPROVE 
 
 

APPROVE 
 
 

ADOPT 
 
 
 

APPROVE 

1 

 
3 
 
 

5 
 

 
9 

https://www.ci.chehalis.wa.us/contact
mailto:kfranz@ci.chehalis.wa.us


 
 
 

ITEM ADMINISTRATION 
RECOMMENDATION PAGE 

NEW BUSINESS 
9. Northwest Pacific Avenue Reconstruction Project – Construction Budget Amendment. (City 

Manager, Public Works Director) 
 
10. Northwest Pacific Avenue Reconstruction Project – Amendment to Contract with RB 

Engineering for Additional Services. (City Manager, Public Works Director) 
 
11. Snively Avenue Roadway Utility and Reconstruction Project – Amendment to Contract 

with RB Engineering for Additional Services. (City Manager, Public Works Director) 
 

APPROVE 
 

 
APPROVE 

 
 

APPROVE 
 
 

11 
 
 

20 
 

 
21 

 
 
 
 
 
 

ITEM ADMINISTRATION 
RECOMMENDATION PAGE 

ADMINISTRATION AND CITY COUNCIL REPORTS   
12. Administration Reports.       

 
a. City Manager Update.  (City Manager) 

 
b. Second Quarter Financial Status Report. (City Manager, Finance Director) 

                
13. Councilor Reports/Committee Updates.  (City Council)   
 

 

 
INFORMATION ONLY 

 
INFORMATION ONLY 

 

 
INFORMATION ONLY 

 

 
-  -  - 

 
 

34 
 

-  -  - 

 
 
 
 
 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
14. Pursuant to RCW: 
 

a. 42.30.110(1)(c) – Sale/Lease of Real Estate 
b. 42.30.110(1)(i) – Litigation/Potential Litigation  
c. 42.30.140(4)(b) – Collective Bargaining  

                                                   
 

THE CITY COUNCIL MAY ADD AND TAKE ACTION ON OTHER ITEMS NOT LISTED ON THIS AGENDA. 
NEXT REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING IS MONDAY, AUGUST 8, 2021. 



Chehalis City Council 
Meeting Minutes 

July 12, 2021 
 
 The Chehalis City Council met in regular session on Monday, July 12, 2021.  Mayor Dennis Dawes called the meeting 
to order at 5:00 pm with the following members present: Michael Bannan, Tony Ketchum, Jerry Lord, Dr. Isaac Pope, and Bob 
Spahr. Councilor Daryl Lund participated via Zoom. Staff present included: Jill Anderson, City Manager; Tammy Baraconi, Planning 
and Building Manager; Kiley Franz, City Clerk; Erin Hillier, City Attorney; Randy Kaut, Interim Police Chief; Brandon Rakes, Airport 
Operations Coordinator; and Chun Saul, Finance Director.  
 
 1. Approval of Agenda. A motion to approve the agenda was made by Councilor Ketchum. The motion was seconded 
by Councilor Bannan and carried unanimously.   
 
 2. Port of Chehalis Update. Randy Mueller, CEO, provided an update on the activities at the Port of Chehalis. A project 
to help ease the flooding of roads in the port district has been approved. A memorandum of understanding with Twin Transit is 
being drafted for a hydrogen vehicle refueling station. Randy Mueller informed the Council that he would be leaving his position as 
CEO of the Port at the end of November. Mayor Dawes inquired about a Japanese firm that produced wood pellets that had 
previously expressed interest in the port. Mr. Mueller informed the Council that many interested businesses had ceased 
communications with the onset of COVID-19, that firm being one of them.   
 
 3. Citizens Business.  
 

a. Mayor Dawes informed the Council that Leah Vanesse had requested to move to the July 26th meeting.  
 

b. Jenny Collins, Chehalis Foundation Director, explained that a fundraiser would be held at Lintott-Alexander Park on 
July 30th from 5:00 pm to 8:00 pm. There will be refreshments and a silent auction. Councilor Pope explained that 
Lintott-Alexander Park was the pilot program for the Chehalis Foundation; he praised the Chehalis Foundation’s 
effort to support the City and the School Districts.  

 
 4. Consent Calendar.  Councilor Spahr moved to approve the consent calendar comprised of the following: 
 

c. Minutes of the regular City Council meeting of June 28, 2021; and 
 

d. June 30, 2021 Claim Vouchers No. 132013 – 132124 and Electronic Funds Transfer Check Nos. 1379 – 1409, and 
15 in the amount of $313,798.68; and  
 

e. June 30, 2021, Payroll Vouchers No. 41688-41724, Direct Deposit Payroll Vouchers No. 13539-13668, Electronic 
Federal Tax and DRS Pension/Deferred Comp Payments No. 347-350 in the amount of $869,479.97; and 
 

f. Resolution No. 10-2021, First Reading – Setting a public hearing on Monday, August 3rd at 5:00 pm regarding 
petition to vacate portions of right-of-way on SE Adams, 12th Street, and the undeveloped alley between 11th and 
12th Streets. 

 
 The motion was seconded by Councilor Pope and carried unanimously.  
 
 5. Consideration of Early Work Agreement for Tract 8 at 1800 NW Louisiana Avenue to KEM Northwest, LLC, a 
Washington Limited Liability Company.  Brandon Rakes explained that the Council had recently approved the lease of Tract 8 
to KEM Northwest. The early work agreement was proposed in hopes of being able to fill both Tract 8 and Tract 9 at the same 
time.  
 
 A motion to approve the acceptance of the Early Work Agreement for Tract 8 at 1800 NW Louisiana Avenue by KEM 
Northwest and authorize the City Manager to execute the documents was made by Councilor Ketchum. The motion was seconded 
by Councilor Pope and carried unanimously. Councilor Bannan abstained from the motion.  
 
 6. Administration Reports. 
 

1



a. City Manager Update.  City Manager Anderson informed the Council that Laura Fisher had been hired for the Permit 
Technician position in the Community Development office. There will be Party in Park at Lintott-Alexander Park and Music in the 
Park at Recreation Park, both of which will take place on July 30th. A celebration for the completion of work at the sports complex 
and Penny Playground will take place on August 6th at 5:30 pm.  

 
 7. Councilor Reports/Committee Updates.   
 

a. Mayor Dawes. Mayor Dawes went to an open house for Betty Brook’s retirement, he attended a growth 
management committee meeting, and he met with Jill Anderson and Lilly Wall regarding the grand opening of Penny 
Playground and the sports complex. Mayor Dawes asked if there was an effort by the Police Department to inform 
the citizens of the new state laws that limit police response. Interim Chief Kaut explained that the police would still 
be responding, but their actions may be limited upon arrival.   

 
 8. Executive Session.  Mayor Dawes announced the council would take a short recess and then be in executive session 
pursuant to RCW 42.30.110(1)(i) – Litigation/Potential Litigation and RCW 42.30.110(1)(c) – Sale/Lease of Real Estate, not to 
exceed 6:15 pm and there may be action taken following conclusion of the executive session. Mayor Dawes closed the regular 
meeting at 5:31 pm. and the executive session began at 5:35 pm. Following conclusion of the executive session at 6:08 pm, the 
regular meeting was reopened and was immediately adjourned.  
  
 
 
 
               ______________________________ 
         Dennis L. Dawes, Mayor 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Kiley Franz, City Clerk 
 
Approved:  
 
Initials: _____ 
 

2



 
CHEHALIS CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

AGENDA REPORT 
 
 
TO:    The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM:   Jill Anderson, City Manager 
 
BY:    Chun Saul, Finance Director  
    Joe Cushman, Accounting Tech II 
 
MEETING OF: July 26, 2021 
 
SUBJECT: Vouchers and Transfers – Accounts Payable in the Amount of $365,810.88 
 

 
ISSUE 
 

City Council approval is requested for Vouchers and Transfers dated July 15, 2021.    
 

DISCUSSION 
 

The July 15, 2021, claim vouchers have been reviewed by a committee of three councilors prior 
to the release of payments.  The administration is requesting City Council approval for Claim 
Vouchers No. 132125 – 132232 and Electronic Funds Transfer Check Nos. 1410 – 1435 and 16-
17 in the amount of $365,900.22 dated July 15, 2021 and voided check No. 132086 in the 
amount of $89.34 for the net total of $365,810.88 as follows: 
    

• $ 131,700.09 from the General Fund 

• $ 382.41 from the Dedicated Street Fund – 4% Sales Tax 

• $ 9,227.82 from the Arterial Street Fund. 

• $ 3,818.77 from the Transportation Benefit District Fund 

• $ 5,574.43 from the Tourism Fund 

• $ 1,933.86 from the LEOFF 1 OPEB Reserve Fund 

• $ 35,629.10 from the G.O. Bond Fund 

• $ 6,869.65 from the Public Facilities Reserve Fund 

• $ 826.37 from the Garbage Fund 

• $ 70,991.13 from the Wastewater Fund 

• $ 38,251.84 from the Water Fund 

• $ 2,530.09 from the Storm & Surface Water Utility Fund 

• $ 7,489.48 from the Airport Fund 

• $ 5,857.79 from the Custodial Court Fund 

• $ 44,817.39 from the Custodial Other Agency Fund 

• $ 365,900.22 Total Vouchers for July 15, 2021 
$<89.34> Voided check for June 30, 2021 
$ 365,810.88 Net Total Transfers 
 

3



RECOMMENDATION 
 

It is recommended that the City Council approve the July 15, 2021, Claim Vouchers No. 132125 
– 132232 and Electronic Funds Transfer Check Nos. 1410 – 1435 and 16-17 in the amount of 
$365,900.22 and voided check No. 132086 in the amount of $89.34 for the net total transfer of 
$365,810.88.  
 

SUGGESTED MOTION 
 

I move that the City Council approve the July 15, 2021, Claim Vouchers No. 132125 – 132232 
and Electronic Funds Transfer Check Nos. 1410 – 1435 and 16-17 in the amount of $365,900.22 
and voided check No. 132086 in the amount of $89.34 for the net total transfer of $365,810.88.  

4



CHEHALIS CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
TO:    The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM:   Jill Anderson, City Manager 
 
BY:    Kiley Franz, City Clerk 
 
MEETING OF:  July 21, 2021 
 
SUBJECT:   Resolution No. 11-2021 – Correcting Duplicate Resolution Numbers 
 
 
ISSUE 
 

Three resolutions were misnumbered when presented to the Council for adoption. A resolution to amend 
these numbers has been prepared to provide a correction upon approval.   
 

DISCUSSION 
 

Ten resolutions have been passed by the City Council in 2021. A misnumbering of three of these 
resolutions has created duplicate numbers. The needed corrections are as follows: 
 

Passed Resolution 
Number 

Correction 
Needed 

 

Resolution Summary 

1-2021 N/A Declaring property to be surplus – Police Department 
2-2021 N/A Continuing the City’s support for a basin-wide solution to flooding 

and aquatic species restoration 
3-2021 N/A Approving the public participation plan for the Shoreline Master 

Program comprehensive update and periodic review process  
4-2021 N/A Adopting the amended restated interlocal agreement of the 

Southwest Washington Regional Transportation Planning 
Organization 

5-2021 N/A Authorizing the submission of a ballot proposition for an EMS Levy 
(August primary) 

6-2021 N/A Authorizing the submission of a ballot proposition for an EMS Levy 
(November general election) 

4-2021 7-2021 Amending the Fee Schedule 
5-2021 8-2021 Declaring property to be surplus – Public Works, Fire Department, 

and City Hall 
6-2021 9-2021 Adopting the 2022-2027 Six-Year Transportation Improvement Plan 

for the City of Chehalis 
10-2021 N/A Setting a public hearing date for a petition for vacation of portions of 

right-of-way for SE Adams Street, 12th Street, and an undeveloped 
alley 

 
 

5



FISCAL IMPACT 
 

There is no fiscal impact related to this resolution.  
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 

It is recommended that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 11-2021. 
 

SUGGESTED MOTION 
 

I move that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 11-2021.  
 
 

6



RESOLUTION NO.  11-2021 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF CHEHALIS, WASHINGTON, 
CORRECTING DUPLICATE RESOLUTION NUMBERS.  
 

 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CHEHALIS, WASHINGTON, DO RESOLVE AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. The following described resolutions of the City of Chehalis, Washington, a 
municipal corporation, shall be, and the same hereby are, renumbered as necessary.  

 
Passed Resolution 

Number 
Correction 

Needed 

 

Resolution Summary 

1-2021 N/A Declaring property to be surplus – Police Department 
2-2021 N/A Continuing the City’s support for a basin-wide solution to flooding 

and aquatic species restoration 
3-2021 N/A Approving the public participation plan for the Shoreline Master 

Program comprehensive update and periodic review process  
4-2021 N/A Adopting the amended restated interlocal agreement of the 

Southwest Washington Regional Transportation Planning 
Organization 

5-2021 N/A Authorizing the submission of a ballot proposition for an EMS Levy 
(August primary) 

6-2021 N/A Authorizing the submission of a ballot proposition for an EMS Levy 
(November general election) 

4-2021 7-2021 Amending the Fee Schedule 
5-2021 8-2021 Declaring property to be surplus – Public Works, Fire Department, 

and City Hall 
6-2021 9-2021 Adopting the 2022-2027 Six-Year Transportation Improvement Plan 

for the City of Chehalis 
10-2021 N/A Setting a public hearing date for a petition for vacation of portions 

of right-of-way for SE Adams Street, 12th Street, and an 
undeveloped alley 

 
 ADOPTED by the City Council of the city of Chehalis, Washington, and APPROVED by its 
Mayor, at a regularly scheduled open public meeting thereof this 26th day of July, 2021. 
 
 
       ______________________________ 
        Dennis L. Dawes, Mayor 
Attest: 
 
______________________________ 
Kiley Franz, City Clerk 
 

7



Approved as to form and content: 
 
__________________________ 
Erin Hillier, City Attorney 

8



CHEHALIS CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
TO:    The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM:   Jill Anderson, City Manager 
 
BY:    Brandon Rakes, Airport Operations Coordinator     
 
DATE:    July 26, 2021    
 
SUBJECT:  Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental Appropriations Act (CRRSA) 

Grant for Airports through the new Airport Coronavirus Response Grant 
Program (ACRGP) – Acceptance of Grant Funds 

 
 
ISSUE 
 

The Chehalis-Centralia Airport was contacted by the Acting Airport District Office Manager of the Federal 
Aviation Administration on June 28, 2021. The airport was informed that under the recently passed 
American Rescue Plan Act 2021 (Public Law 117-2) (ARPA), the Chehalis-Centralia Airport is eligible to 
receive an additional $59,000 grant.  The City applied to obtain the funds and is asking the City Council to 
authorize acceptance of the funds.  
 

DISCUSSION 
 

The funds that we are eligible to receive through this grant are part of federal funding available to the 
National Plan of Integrated Airport Systems (NPIAS) General Aviation Airports.  These funds are similar to 
the funds granted under CARES, but their use is more limited in scope. According to an email received 
from Warren Ferrell, Acting Manager for the FAA, Seattle Airports District Office, “These funds are to be 
used for costs related to operations, personnel, cleaning, sanitization, janitorial services, combating the 
spread of pathogens at the airport, and debt service payments”. Debt servicing, which is how the Chehalis-
Centralia Airport used the original CARES funding, is still eligible. 
 

The purpose of these funds is to provide economic relief to airports in response to the COVID-19 
pandemic. The FAA will distribute these grants under the new Airport Rescue Grant Program (ARGP). 
 

FISCAL IMPACT 
 

It is proposed that the $59,000 be used for debt service payments on the Arkansas Way Loan. This will 
reduce the principal balance on the loan and save thousands of dollars on interest.  
  

RECOMMENDATION 
 

It is recommended that the City Council approve the acceptance of the grant funds, authorize the City 
Manager to execute all documents necessary to receive this grant, and designate that these funds be used 
to pay down an existing principal balance on the Arkansas Way Loan the Airport currently has.  
 
 
 

9



SUGGESTED MOTION  
 

I move that the City Council approve the acceptance of the grant funds, authorize the City Manager to 
execute all documents necessary to receive this grant, and designate that these funds be used to pay 
down an existing principal balance on the Arkansas Way Loan.  
 
 

10



CHEHALIS CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
TO:    The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM:   Jill Anderson, City Manager 
 
BY:    Celest Wilder, Engineer Tech II, for  
    Trent Lougheed, Public Works Director 
     
MEETING OF:  July 26, 2021 
 
SUBJECT:  Northwest Pacific Avenue Reconstruction – Construction Budget Amendment  
  
 
ISSUE 
 

An increase in the Construction Budget for the Reconstruction of NW Pacific Avenue is needed 
at this time to complete the project and accommodate a change order that exceeds the 
previously granted budget authority.    
 

BACKGROUND 
 

On April 12, 2021, Council awarded the NW Pacific Avenue Reconstruction Project to Ronglin’s, 
Inc. in the amount of $1,384,960.00 and an additional ten percent contingency of $138,496.00, 
which authorized the City Manager to execute change orders not to exceed the total project 
budget of $1,523,500.00.  Since award of the bid, change order No. 1, in the amount of -$500.00, 
and change order No. 3, in the amount of $11,560.35 have been approved by the City Manager.   
 

Change Order 2 in the amount of $204,310.84 has been submitted by the Contractor and 
reviewed by RB Engineering, the City’s Project Engineer, and submitted to the City for approval.  
This amount exceeds the authority given to the City Manager by $76,875.14 and is prompting a 
request for an increase in the contingency budget to accommodate Change Order 2 and 
additional changes that may be needed during the remainder of the project.  
 

 
Original Construction Project Budget 

 
 
Bid Award  

 
$1,384,960.00 

 
Contingency 

 
138,496.00 

 
Total Project Budget 

 
1,523,456.00 

 
 Rounded Up to 

$1,523,500.00 
 
 

11



CHANGE ORDERS SUBMITTED TO DATE  
 

 
Summary of Change Orders as of July 20, 2021 

 
Change Order Number Amount Description 

Change Order 1  (- 500) Project Decrease – Reduction of Two Driveway 
Approaches (So the project contingency goes up 
$500)  

Change Order 2 $204,310.84 Changes to Geotechnical Subsurface Design: 
Removal and disposal of unsuitable material.  
Increase of rock and geotextile to provide a solid 
road base 

Change Order 3  $11,560.30  Changes to Geo-Technical Recommendations: 
Installation of an additional gate valve to decrease 
impacted isolation area in the event of a water main 
shut down. 

TOTAL TO DATE $215,371.14  
Original Construction 
Contingency  

$138,496.00 Contingency of 10% established at the time of the 
Bid Award 

 

Amount Over Existing 
Budget Authority  
 

 
$76,875.14 

 
 

   
 

Change Order Item No. 1:  Removal of Driveway entrances, to be replaced with straight run 
sidewalk on the west side of NW Pacific: (-$500.00):  Two driveways located on the west side of 
NW Pacific do not need to be reconstructed as driveway approaches.  These parking lot driveways 
are being revised in a separate project and will not be utilized in the future. This change order 
resulted in a project decrease of $500.00 and has been approved by the City Manager. 
 

Change Order Item No. 2:  Changes to geo-technical subsurface design:  $204,310.84:  During 
the demolition phase of the project, it was discovered that native soils below the existing 
roadway consist of soft clay like materials that are not suitable for new road construction design.  
Over time, this soft native soil would cause the surface of NW Pacific Ave to unevenly sink and 
belly. These negative impacts bring about a cascading effect of further road surface issues, 
including but not limited to, uneven subsurface settling, cracking, potholing, and ponding of 
stormwater on the roadway.  
 

These conditions were found in the field during construction.  Geotechnical work was completed 
in 2018 by MTC and the street was designed consistent with the recommendations. This 
situation, was therefore, very unexpected.  In order to address the unsatisfactory conditions, a 
change order was prepared to include the removal of the unsuitable material (excavation of 

12



1,725 cubic yards of material and its disposal) and placement of an additional 2,400 tons of 
crushed rock and the placement of 4,500 square yards of geotextile fabric.  
 

This change order resulted in a project increase of $204,310.84, and 21 additional calendar days 
of work. It has not been approved or paid. 
 

Change Order Item No. 3:  Changes to geo-technical recommendations: $11,560.30: The 
addition of this gate valve will decrease the impacted isolation area in the event of an emergency 
water main shut down.  Currently, if water main flows need to be interrupted for emergency 
repairs or maintenance, a 6-block area would be impacted.  This impact area includes the County 
Courthouse and the Health Department buildings, along with several other privately owned and 
government offices.  After installation of the 14” gate valve, the affected area of impact would 
only be 2 blocks rather than 6 blocks.  This change order resulted in a project increase of 
$11,560.35, including one additional day of work, and has been approved by the City Manager.  
 

FISCAL IMPACT  
 

In order to complete the project, an amendment to the existing project budget is needed in the 
amount of $76,875.14 to fund the work in Change Order 2 and an additional $75,000 in 
contingency is needed to facilitate to accommodate some additional change orders that are 
anticipated as the project proceeds.   
 

At this time, there are some expected miscellaneous change orders associated with work, 
including some related to the operation of the streetlights.  In addition, we are working with the 
County to accommodate its request to have additional electrical/fiber conduit installed while the 
street is being constructed, which would be reimbursed to the City by the County; however, for 
accounting purposes it would need to be included as an expenditure.   
 

The NW Pacific Avenue Reconstruction Project is included in the 2021 Budget and is funded with 
a combination of Stormwater, Water, and Transportation Benefit District Funds. The preliminary 
allocations were identified as 42% TBD, 25% Storm, and 33% Water. The final allocations will be 
done at the end of the project.   
 

 
PROPOSED CONSTRUCTION PROJECT BUDGET WITH AMENDMENTS 

 
 

Awarded Bid 
  

$1,384,960.00 

Contingency $138,496.00  
Proposed Addition for Change Order 2 $76,875.14  
Proposed Additional Contingency $75,000  
 

Contingency Subtotal  
 

$290,371.14 
 

TOTAL PROPOSED CONSTRUCTION BUDGET   
 
 

 

$1,675,331.14 

 

13



While change orders are frustrating, if the City Council raises the contingency to cover the 
additional needed for Change Order 2 and an additional $75,000, the contingency would be 21%.  
Considering the complexity of the project, a 21% contingency is not extraordinary.  
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 

It is recommended that the City Council approve: 
 

• Increasing the total construction budget for the NW Pacific Avenue Reconstruction to 
$1,675,331.14 to include a revised contingency budget of $290,371.14; and  

• Authorize the City Manager to approve Change orders that do not exceed the revised 
construction budget, including Change Order 2.  
 

SUGGESTED MOTION 
 

I move that the City Council approve: 
 

• Increasing the total construction budget for the NW Pacific Avenue Reconstruction to 
$1,675,331.14 to include a revised contingency budget of $290,371.14; and  

• Authorize the City Manager to approve Change orders that do not exceed the revised 
construction budget, including Change Order 2.  

 

14



CITY OF CHEHALIS 
                1321 S Market Boulevard  
             Chehalis, Washington 98532 
     (360) 748-0271  /  Fax (360) 748-6993 
                 www.cityofchehalis.com 
 

 
CITY OF CHEHALIS 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 
NORTHWEST PACIFIC AVENUE RECONSTRUCTION 

 
RONGLIN’S INC 

PO BOX 360 
Aberdeen, Washington 98520-0078 

 
CHANGE ORDER NO. 2 

Changes to geo-technical subsurface requirements 
 
PART 1 – Change Initiation 
 
The Contractor encountered unsuitable soil conditions beneath the existing NW Pacific road surface.  The 
City desires to have properly compacted, suitable subsurface materials beneath the NW Pacific roadway 
to ensure longevity of the finished product. 
 
PART 2 – Evaluation of Cause and Justification 
 
During the demolition phase, it was discovered that the native soils below the existing roadway consist of 
materials not suitable for new road design buildup. The native soil material is soft, requiring placement of 
additional gravel and geotextile fabric to achieve minimum subsurface compaction requirements and to 
prevent the road design build up from sinking.   
 
To achieve desired subsurface conditions, 12” of unsuitable native soil must be removed from the project, 
hauled offsite, replaced with 12” of compacted crushed rock, and covered with geotextile fabric.  The 
unsuitable native material triggering this change does not match the soils described in the geo-technical 
report provided for developing the scope of work.  This change is required to achieve a stable roadway 
surface.  
 
It is anticipated this will add an additional 15 days of work to complete. 
 
PART 3 – Scope of Work 
 
UNSUITABLE MATERIAL REMOVAL 

• Over excavation of unsuitable native subsurface 
• Haul and dispose of an additional 1,725 cubic yards of unsuitable material 

15



 
SUB SURFACE PREPARATION 

• Placement of 2,400 tons crushed rock  
• Placement of 4,500 square yards of geotextile fabric 

 
PART 4 – Contractor Proposal 
 
The Contractor’s Lump Sum costs for the above change order items are as follows: 
 
Labor: 

• Superintendent 120 hrs. @ $88.00 per hour   $10,560.00 
• Laborer  240 hrs. @ $65.00 per hour   $15,600.00 
• Truck Driver  360 hrs. @ $86.00 per hour   $30,960.00 
• Operating Engineer 120 hrs. @ $86.00 per hour   $10,320.00 

              Subtotal:   $67,440.00 
                 Overhead and Profit:   $10,116.00 
      Labor Total:   $77,556.00 
 
Equipment: 

• 210 Excavator  120 hrs. @ $112.29 per hour   $13,474.80 
• Dump Truck  360 hrs. @   $85.83 per hour   $30,898.80 
• Roller   120 hrs. @   $50.28 per hour     $6,033.60 
• Water Truck  120 hrs. @   $32.77 per hour     $3,932.40 

            Subtotal:   $54,339.60 
    Overhead and Profit:     $8,150.94 
           Equipment Total:   $62,490.54 

Materials: 
• Dump Fee 1,725 cubic yards @ $10.00 per cubic yard  $17,250.00 
• Rock 2,400 tons crushed rock @ $10.18 per ton   $24,432.00 
• Fabric (on hand) specified by geo-tech report  

2,000 square yards @ $6.30 per yard     $12,700.00 
• Equivalent fabric specified by geo-tech report 

4500 square yards @ $0.60 per yard       $2,700.00 
               Subtotal:   $57,082.00 
        Overhead and Profit:    $8,562.30 
     Material Total:  $65.644.30 

15 Day Time Extension  
 
DOES NOT INCLUED SALES TAX          COP TOTAL               $205,690.84 
*assumed 35,875SF total area. Unit price $51.26 per square yard 
 
PART 5 – Negotiation Record 
 

16



The work completed was necessary to achieve the improvements that were designed.  The discovery of 
unsuitable native soils cannot be confirmed with 100% certainty until such time that the existing roadway 
had been demolished.  We find the site preparatory works and underground infrastructure elements 
contemplated in the original budget estimate compare closely to the Contractor’s proposal, which 
calculated unit prices are comparable to original contract pricing. 
 
PART 6 – Supplemental Information 
Ronglin’s Lump Sum total 
 
Based on the foregoing, we recommend the approval of Change Order #2 in the amount of $205,690.84, 
plus sales tax on applicable item(s). 
 
A 15 day time extension will be added as a result of this Change Order and has been calculated as part of 
the total change order cost. 
 
Submitted by: 
 
      
Trent Lougheed, P.E. 
Public Works Director 
 
 
Approved by: 
 
      
Jill Anderson, City Manager 
City of Chehalis 
 
 
 
 

17



18



19



Place holder for Northwest Pacific Avenue Reconstruction Project - 
Amendment to the Contract with RB Engineering for Additional Services 

Agenda Report

File was corrupted and lost upon agenda assembly and will be disseminated 
on Monday prior to the Council meeting.

20



CHEHALIS CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
TO:    The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM:   Jill Anderson, City Manager 
 
BY:    Nichole Paulis, Public Works Office Manager 
     
MEETING OF: July 26, 2021 
 
SUBJECT:  Snively Avenue Roadway Utility and Reconstruction Project – Amendment to 

Contract with RB Engineering for Additional Services  
 
 
ISSUE 
 

RB Engineering has performed the engineering services associated with the Snively Avenue 
Project.  Additional engineering services are needed that exceed the previous budget authority 
granted by the City Council in May of 2020.   
 

BACKGROUND 
 

On May 26, 2020, Council approved an engineering services agreement with RB Engineering for 
design and construction services for the Snively Ave Project in the amount of $75,310, this also 
authorized the City Manager to sign and approve a contingency of up to $7,500 for a total 
impact of $82,810.00. The contingency was used by Contract Amendment – Extra Work 
Authorization No. 1, signed and dated 6/10/2020 when the City requested a site survey and 
design work to replace an existing water main that was in the BNSF Railroad Right-of Way.   
 

ADDITIONAL SERVICES  
 

The project is now under construction and RB Engineering is now requesting authorization to 
amend the contract for additional $10,250.00 for additional construction management services 
beyond the original scope in order to close out the project.  In addition, there is an allocation to 
contract with Materials Testing and Consulting (MTC) to provide the following services: 
 

• Utility Trench Compaction Testing for Storm and Water Line Installation 
• Road Subgrade and Rock Compaction Testing 
• Final Asphalt Compaction Testing 
• Special Inspection and Testing for Sidewalks, Curbs, and Driveways 

 

FISCAL IMPACT 
 

This project is included in the 2021 Adopted Budget and is being funded by the Water, Sewer, 
and TBD funds.  Based on previous engineer’s estimates, the costs will be approximately 18% 
TBD, 28% Sewer, and 54% Water.  
 

21



The proposed contract amendment for the additional inspection testing by MTC and additional 
construction engineering services is $10,250.00 bringing the new contract total to $93,030.00 
and will not be exceeded without permission from the city. 
 

 
RB Engineering for Snively Avenue Project 

 

 

Original Contract  $75,310 
Contingency  7,500 
Subtotal  82,810 
Task 40 - Special Inspections (MTC) 8,750  
Task 80 - Construction Management  1,500  
Subtotal for Additional Work  $10,250 
 
Revised Contract Amount  

 
 

 
$93,060 

 

RECOMMENDATION 
 

It is recommended that the City Council authorize the City Manager to amend the contract with 
RB Engineering for services related to the Snively Avenue Roadway Utility and Reconstruction 
Project and authorize additional work in the amount of $10,250 to bring the total contract 
amount to $93,060.  
 

SUGGESTED MOTION 
 

I move that the City Council authorize the City Manager to amend the contract with RB 
Engineering for services related to the Snively Avenue Roadway Utility and Reconstruction 
Project and authorize additional work in the amount of $10,250 to bring the total contract 
amount to $93,060.  
 

 
 

 

22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



CHEHALIS CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
TO:    The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM:   Jill Anderson, City Manager 
     
BY:    Chun Saul, Finance Director 
     
MEETING OF:  July 26, 2021 
 
SUBJECT:   2021 Second Quarter Financial Status Report 
 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
This document provides a summary review of the City’s financial activities and status for the quarter 
ending June 30, 2021.  
 
The attached financial statements include 1) Summary of Revenues, Expenditures, and Fund Balances – 
Budget to Actual for all city funds combined  and 2) Two-year comparative financial statements for the 
General Fund and the major enterprise funds.   
 
The financial statements have been formatted to be consistent with the budget for ease of comparison 
and review of information.  Comparisons and variances shown are based on straight line projections. The 
YTD target for the second quarter is 50% (6 of 12 months). 
 
CITY-WIDE OVERVIEW 
 
Overall, on a city-wide basis, the city has received $15,461,347 or 56.7% of the 2021 revenue budget 
(including transfers-in) and has expensed $12,115,839 or 40.7% of the 2021 expenditure budget (including 
transfers-out) through June 30, 2021. Total city-wide revenues exceeded total expenditures by 
$3,345,508. The city-wide total fund balance as of June 30, 2021, is $28,490,586. 
 

 
 

City-Wide, All Funds

2021 
Amended 

Budget 
YTD Actual 
6/30/2021

YTD % of 
Budget

 YTD Variance 
Actual to 

Target Positive 
(Negative)

Revenues & Transfers In 27,260,635$    15,461,347$      56.7% 1,831,030$        
Expenditures & Transfers Out 29,754,064      12,115,839         40.7% 2,761,193          
Excess Revenue Over (under) Expenditure (2,493,429)       3,345,508           -134.2% 4,592,223$        
Beginning Cash & Investments 25,145,078      25,145,078         100.0%
Ending Cash & Investments 22,651,649$    28,490,586$      125.8%

34



Other than the General Fund, all other funds are restricted funds that are used to account for specific 
revenues or resources that are legally restricted or designated to finance particular activities of the city, 
such as transportation benefit district (TBD), lodging tax, utilities, and Airport funds. 
 
Total YTD city-wide revenues received is 6.7% or $1,831,030 above the six-month target amount. The key 
contributing factors for this variance include the following: 
 

• The City received $1,068,299 in Local Fiscal Recovery Funds under the American Rescue Plan Act 
(ARPA) of 2021. This is U.S. Treasury funds and comes with restrictions on the use. The City 
administration is compiling a list of potential use of these funds and plans to present it to the 
Council Budget Committee prior to the start of 2022 budget development and to the City Council 
later this year. This money is received in and accounted for in a separate Federal Grant Control 
Fund (Fund No. 199). Receipt of this money will be included in the next budget amendment. 
 

• Total YTD tax revenues exceeds the six-months target amount by 8.5% or $853,688. Below table 
provides a summary of all tax revenues. The hotel/motel tax revenue is 5.6% or $12,218 below 
the six-month target, whereas all other tax revenues exceed the six-month target amount. 

 

 
 

Total city-wide expenditures to-date is 9.3% or $2,761,193 below the six-month target amount. The key 
contributing factor for this variance is due to various capital project activities.  
 

• The City has expensed 17.7% of the 2021 capital budget through June. This is 32.3% or $2,170,875 
below the six-month target amount.  

• YTD expenditures for all other categories  including operating, transfers, and debt service is 47.4% 
of the 2021 budget. This is 0.6% or $590,319 below the six-month target amount. 

 
Additional information on the revenue and expenditure variances for the General Fund and the major 
enterprise funds are explained in more detail in the fund overview section below. 
 
Bottom Line:  Overall, the City operated within normal budget parameters. 
 
 GENERAL FUND OVERVIEW 
 
The General Fund’s YTD total revenue is $5,626,588 or 56.7% of the 2021 budget. This is 6.7% or $663,330 
above the six-month target amount. Total YTD expenditures and transfers is $5,401,573 or 48.4% of the 
2021 budget. This is 1.6% or $181,977 below the six-month target amount.  
 

City-wide Tax Revenues 2021 Budget
YTD Actual 
6/30/2021 Prct Rec'd

Variance to 
YTD Target

Property taxes 1,980,859$         1,154,911$      58.3% 164,482$          
Sales tax 4,898,100            2,927,720        59.8% 478,670            
Sales tax  - TBD 1,096,000            660,914            60.3% 112,914            
Hotel/Motel tax 219,500               97,532              44.4% (12,218)             
Utility tax 1,619,400            869,371            53.7% 59,671               
Leasehold tax 54,700                  28,541              52.2% 1,191                 
REET 224,900               161,428            71.8% 48,978               
TOTALS 10,093,459$       5,900,417$      58.5% 853,688$          

35



Total YTD revenues exceeded the total expenditures by $225,015.  The ending cash and investments (fund 
balance) as of June 30, 2021, is $2,465,754, which is about 24.8% of the 2021 general fund revenue 
budget.  
 

 
 

General Fund Revenues: 
 
Total YTD tax revenues received is $5,626,588 or 56.7% of the 2021 budget. This is $663,330 above the 
six-month target amount.  
 

 
 
Total tax revenues make up 88.5% of total general fund revenues received through June 2021. 
 
Property Tax: YTD received is $1,154,912 or 58.3% of the 2021 budget. This is normal trend for this time 
of the year.  
 
Sales Tax: YTD received is $2,927,719 or 59.8% of the 2021 budget. This is $478,669 above the six-month 
target amount. Sales tax is the City’s largest revenue source and makes up 52.0% of the total general fund 
revenues received through June 2021. 
 
Total sales tax collections continue to exceed the previous forecast.  Below chart illustrates the month-
to-month comparisons for Chehalis local sales tax distributions received in years 2021, 2020 & 2019. 

Chehalis  General Fund
2021 Amended 

Budget
YTD Actual 
6/30/2021

YTD 
Actual % 

of Budget 

 YTD Variance 
Actual to Target 

Positive 
(Negative)

Revenues & Transfers-In 9,926,514$        5,626,588$    56.7% 663,330$                  
Expenditures & Transfers-Out 11,167,094        5,401,573      48.4% 181,977                    
Excess Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (1,240,580)         225,015          -18.1% 845,307                    
Beginning Fund Balance 2,240,739          2,240,739      
Ending Fund Balance 1,000,159$        2,465,754$    
Ending Fund Balance % of Revenue 10.1% 24.8%

General Fund Revenues 2021 Budget
YTD Actual 
6/30/2021

YTD % of 
Budget 
Rec'd

Variance YTD 
Target vs. 

Actual 
 YTD Actual 
6/30/2020

 2020-20201 
YTD 

Comparison
Property Taxes 1,980,859$      1,154,912$    58.3% 164,482$     1,074,345$ 80,567$       
Sales and Use Taxes 4,898,100        2,927,719      59.8% 478,669        2,333,372    594,347       
Util ity Taxes 1,619,400        869,371         53.7% 59,671          830,432       38,939         
Other Taxes 54,700              28,541            52.2% 1,191            30,090         (1,549)          
   Subtotal for Tax Revenues 8,553,059        4,980,543      58.2% 704,013        4,268,239    712,304       
Licenses and Permits 200,720            205,905         102.6% 105,545        99,488         106,417       
Intergovernmental 569,035            168,004         29.5% (116,514)      193,917       (25,913)        
Charges for Goods & Services 343,900            125,207         36.4% (46,743)         85,607         39,600         
Fines and Forfeitures 119,400            57,963            48.5% (1,737)           59,111         (1,148)          
Miscellaneous 140,400            88,966            63.4% 18,766          124,293       (35,327)        
   Subtotal for Non-Tax Revenues 1,373,455        646,045         47.0% (40,683)         562,416       83,629         
Total Revenues 9,926,514$      5,626,588$    56.7% 663,330$     4,830,655$ 795,933$     

36



 

 
 

Utility Tax:  Total YTD received is $869,371 or 53.7% of the 2021 budget and is $59,671 above the YTD 
target amount. This is normal trend for this time of the year. While the telephone and water utility taxes 
are slightly below the six-month target amount, other taxes are slightly (6.0 % to 13.6%) ahead of the six-
month target amount. 
 
Licenses and Permits: Total YTD received is $205,905 or 102.6% of the 2021 budget. This amount includes 
business licenses and permit fees (i.e. business license fees and franchise fees) and non-business license 
and permit fees (i.e. building permit fees, animal licenses and gun permits). While business license fee 
revenue is consistent with the budget projection, building permit fee revenue has exceed the 2021 budget 
estimates by the end of June. YTD building permit revenue is $146,285 or 163.2% of the 2021 budget. 
 
Intergovernmental Revenue: Total YTD received is $168,004 or 29.5% of the 2021 budget. This category 
includes intergovernmental grants, state shared revenues, and the Main Street B&O Tax Credit. State RCO 
grant is budgeted for $233,425 but no payments has been received yet.  
 
Charges for goods and services: Total YTD revenue is $125,207 or 36.4% of the 2021 budget. This category 
includes charges for fire and police services, plan check review fees, and recreation program fees. 
Recreation program fees make up about 63% of the budget in this category. YTD parks and recreation 
program revenue is 16.7% of the 2021 budget. A significant portion of the recreation program fee 
revenues is typically received during the summer months.  Plan check fees received to-date is $65,631 or 
147.5% of the 2021 budget.  
 
Miscellaneous: Total YTD revenues is $88,966 or 63.4% of the 2021 budget. This amount includes field 
and facility rentals, interest earnings, seizures & forfeitures, proceeds of surplus sales, and insurance 
recoveries, etc. 
 
 
 
 

 

37



General Fund Expenditures and Transfers-out 
 
Total expenditures and transfers through June is $5,401,573 or 48.4% of the 2021 budget.  This is 
$181,977 below the six-month target amount. YTD expenditures for most departments are within the 
six-month target amount with the following exceptions: 
 

 
 

• Facilities and Parks department has used 52.2% of their 2021 budget through June. This exceeds 
the six-month target amount by $27,304. Hiring several seasonal hourly staff and purchasing 
bulk of maintenance supplies in the second quarter are the key contributing factors for this 
variance. 

 
• Non-departmental department has used 72.8% of the 2021 budget through June. This exceeds 

the six-month target amount by $205,977. The main contributing factor for this variance is due 
to  transfers out. 2021 budgeted transfers out to reserve funds are 83% complete at the end of 
June.  

 
YTD expenditures for public safety (police and fire) is $2,737,583 and makes up about 50.7% of the total 
general fund expenditures through end of June. YTD expenditures for public works streets and facilities 
and parks is $939,494 and make up about 17.4%  of the total general fund expenditures.  
 
Bottom Line: Overall, the general fund operated within the budget parameters.  
 
ENTERPRISE FUND OVERVIEW 
 
Wastewater Fund 
 
Total YTD revenues received is $2,888,713 or 52.4% of the 2021 budget. This is $131,963 above the six-
month target amount. YTD charges for wastewater services exceed the six-month target amount by 2.9% 
or $145,540, while late fee revenue to-date is only 0.7% of the 2021 budget. 
 

38



Total YTD operating expenditures is $1,712,990 or 50.5% of the 2021 budget. This is $16,840 over the 
six-month target amount. While debt service payment to-date is 50% of the 2021 budget, total YTD 
expenditures for capital outlay is only 10.5% of the 2021 budget.  
 
Total YTD revenues exceeded total expenditures by $173,877 at the end of June 2021. 
 
Water Fund 
 
Total YTD revenues received is $1,406,563 or 43.1% of the 2021 budget. This is $225,386 below the six-
month target amount.  
 
YTD charges for water services is 43.6% of the 2021 budget. This is $187,462 below the six-month target 
amount. However, 2021 YTD revenue for water services is about $51,000 increase from this time last year. 
Historically, water consumptions go up during the summer and fall months. Late payment fee revenue is 
budgeted for $51,200 and only 1.6% has been received due to the Governor’s moratorium prohibiting 
assessment of late fees.    
 
Total YTD operating expenditures is $1,068,396 or 43.5% of the 2021 budget. This is $160,832 below the 
six-month target amount. Total expenditures for capital outlay and debt services are 11.6% and 0.6% of 
the 2021 budget, respectively. 
 
Total YTD revenues exceeded the total expenditures by $168,269 at the end of June 2021.  
 
Storm and Surface Water Fund 
 
Total YTD revenues received is $366,817 or 51.2% of the 2021 budget. This is $8,584 above the six-month 
target amount.  
 
Total YTD operating expenditures is $202,883 or 36.8% of the 2021 budget. This is $72,616 below the six-
month target amount.  The key contributing factors for this variance includes 1) hiring delay for the Street 
Superintendent position, which is 50% funded by the Storm and Surface Water Fund 2) only 6.3% of 
operating supplies budget being spent through the end of June.  
 
Total YTD revenues received exceeded total expenditures by $159,461 at the end June 2021. 
 
Airport Fund 
 
Total YTD revenues received is $1,783,143 or 45.2% of the 2021 budget. This is $191,348 below the six-
month target amount. This variance is mainly due to the Federal FAA grant for the Airport pavement 
project. The 2021 budget includes $1,346,070 in Federal grants and only 33.4% or $449,071 has been 
received through June. 
 
Total YTD operating expenditures is $637,336 or 50.7% of the 2021 budget. This is $8,838 above the six-
month target amount. YTD capital expenditures is $319,952 or 15.6% of the 2021 budget. 
 
Total YTD revenues exceeded total expenditures by $753,120 at the end June 2021. 
 
 

39



TREASURER’S REPORT – CASH AND INVESTMENTS 
 
The city’s total cash, deposits, and investments as of June 30, 2021, is $28,490,586. About 77% or 
$21,810,133 of the city’s cash is invested and earns interests. The remaining 23.0% or $6,680,453 is 
deposited in non-interest-bearing checking accounts to cover on-going cash flow needs. A summary of 
cash funds and investment types are as follows: 
 

 
    

   

Note: Other than the General Fund, all other funds are  
restricted or designated to finance particular activities 
of the City.  

  
   
   
   

 
Only 8.7% or $2,465,754 of the total cash and investments belongs to the General Fund. Other than the 
General Fund, all other funds are restricted funds which account for specific revenues or resources that 
are legally restricted or designated to finance particular activities of the city, such as transportation 
benefit district, lodging tax, utilities, and Airport funds. 
 
Total YTD investment interest earnings through June 30, 2021, totaled $15,267.  This is a $129,234 
decrease from this time last year. The LGIP average net earnings rate for the second quarter 2021 and 
2020 were 0.1070% and 1.0625%, respectively. The LGIP net earnings rate has declined from 1.7225% in 
January 2020 to 0.0753% at the end of June 2021. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
As shown. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 

It is recommended that the City Council review this information and let staff know if there are any 
questions. 
  
SUGGESTED MOTION 
 
N/A 

Account Type Balance 6/30/2021 % of Total
Checking & Revolving Cash Fund 6,680,453$              23%
Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) 19,234,836              68%
US Govt Agency Securities (Bonds) 2,575,297                9%
Total 28,490,586$            100%

City of Chehalis Cash, Deposits & Investments - Total Combined All Funds

40



 

City of Chehalis 

 

 

 

 

 
 

  Quarterly   

Council Financial Report  

Second Quarter 2021 

 
For the Period Ending  

June 30, 2021  

(January through June)  

 
The City of Chehalis, Washington 

41



Fund Type/Name

2021 
Amendded 
Budget

Actual 
1/1/2021

2021 
Amendded 
Budget

YTD 
6/30/2021 
Actual Balance

YTD % of 
Budget

2021 
Amendded 
Budget

YTD 
6/30/2021 
Actual Balance

YTD % 
of 

Budget

2021 
Amendded 
Budget

YTD 
6/30/2021 
Actual

2021 
Amendded 
Budget

YTD 
6/30/2021 
Actual

General Fund & Sub‐Funds:
General Fund 2,240,739$      2,240,739$      9,926,514$      5,626,588$      4,299,926$     56.7% 11,167,094$   5,401,573$      5,765,521$      48.4% (1,240,580)$    225,015$         1,000,159        2,465,754$     
Sub‐funds:
Dedicated Street Fund 188,475           188,475           116,950           74,759             42,191            63.9% 184,520           33,025             151,495           17.9% (67,570)            41,734             120,905           230,209          
Building Abatement Fund 51,614             51,614             100                   23                      77                     23.0% ‐                    ‐                    ‐                    0.0% 100                   23                      51,714             51,637            
Compensated Absences Fund 198,020           198,020           200,400           200,076           324                   99.8% 200,000           84,213             115,787           42.1% 400                   115,863           198,420           313,883          
LEOFF 1 OPEB Reserve Fund 101,107           33,607             244,100           91,687             152,413          37.6% 168,300           61,146             107,154           36.3% 75,800             30,541             176,907           64,148            
Federal & State Grant Fund ‐                    ‐                    ‐                    1,068,345        (1,068,345)     0.0% ‐                    ‐                    ‐                    0.0% ‐                    1,068,345        ‐                    1,068,345       
Automotive/Equip. Reserve Fund 108,178           108,178           206,514           206,482           32                     100.0% 46,500             83                      46,417             0.2% 160,014           206,399           268,192           314,577          

Total sub‐funds 647,394          579,894          768,064          1,641,372       (873,308)        213.7% 599,320          178,467          420,853          29.8% 168,744          1,462,905       816,138          2,042,799      
Total General Fund and Sub‐Funds 2,888,133        2,820,633        10,694,578      7,267,960        3,426,618       68.0% 11,766,414      5,580,040        6,186,374        47.4% (1,071,836)      1,687,920        1,816,297        4,508,553       

Special Revenue Funds:
Arterial Street Fund 98,528             98,528             160,600           65,746             94,854            40.9% 168,300           32,105             136,195           19.1% (7,700)               33,641             90,828             132,169          
Transportation Benefit Dist. Fund 3,105,160        3,105,160        1,561,740        678,290           883,450          43.4% 1,637,650        187,583           1,450,067        11.5% (75,910)            490,707           3,029,250        3,595,867       
Tourism Fund 110,053           110,053           219,500           97,578             121,922          44.5% 256,563           106,627           149,936           41.6% (37,063)            (9,049)               72,990             101,004          
Community Block Grant Fund 24,592             24,592             50                      11                      39                     22.0% 1,000                ‐                    1,000                0.0% (950)                  11                      23,642             24,603            
HUD Block Grant Fund 88,424             88,424             180                   39                      141                   21.7% 2,000                ‐                    2,000                0.0% (1,820)               39                      86,604             88,463            
Total Special Revenue Funds 3,426,757        3,426,757        1,942,070        841,664           1,100,406       43.3% 2,065,513        326,315           1,739,198        15.8% (123,443)          515,349           3,303,314        3,942,106       

Debt Service Funds:
2011 G.O. Bond Fund 5                        5                        301,934           301,933           1                       100.0% 301,934           111,180           190,754           36.8% ‐                    190,753           5                        190,758          
Total Debt Service Fund 5                        5                        301,934           301,933           1                       100.0% 301,934           111,180           190,754           36.8% ‐                    190,753           5                        190,758          

Capital Project Funds:
Public Facilities Reserve Fund 958,474           958,474           321,210           274,425           46,785            85.4% 869,176           599,166           270,010           68.9% (547,966)          (324,741)          410,508           633,733          
First Quarter REET Fund 217,375           217,375           115,100           80,796             34,304            70.2% 130,196           130,195           1                        100.0% (15,096)            (49,399)            202,279           167,976          
Second Quarter REET Fund 240,627           240,627           110,700           80,830             29,870            73.0% 75,131             75,131             ‐                    100.0% 35,569             5,699                276,196           246,326          
Total Capital Project Funds 1,416,476        1,416,476        547,010           436,051           110,959          79.7% 1,074,503        804,492           270,011           74.9% (527,493)          (368,441)          888,983           1,048,035       

Proprietary Funds:
Garbage Fund 8,318                8,318                6,115                4,570                1,545               74.7% 6,100                1,637                4,463                26.8% 15                      2,933                8,333                11,251            
Wastewater Fund 5,368,364        5,368,364        5,513,500        2,888,713        2,624,787       52.4% 5,848,470        2,714,836        3,133,634        46.4% (334,970)          173,877           5,033,394        5,542,241       
Water Fund 7,990,124        7,990,124        3,263,897        1,406,563        1,857,334       43.1% 3,916,307        1,238,294        2,678,013        31.6% (652,410)          168,269           7,337,714        8,158,393       
Storm & Surface Water Fund 1,699,119        1,699,119        716,465           366,817           349,648          51.2% 944,900           207,356           737,544           21.9% (228,435)          159,461           1,470,684        1,858,580       
Airport Fund 1,391,726        1,391,726        3,948,981        1,783,143        2,165,838       45.2% 3,428,018        1,030,023        2,397,995        30.0% 520,963           753,120           1,912,689        2,144,846       
Total Proprietary Funds 16,457,651      16,457,651      13,448,958      6,449,806        6,999,152       48.0% 14,143,795      5,192,146        8,951,649        36.7% (694,837)          1,257,660        15,762,814      17,715,311     

Fiduciary Funds:
Firemen's' Pension Fund 956,056           1,023,556        15,480             13,460             2,020               87.0% 91,300             2,193                89,107             2.4% (75,820)            11,267             880,236           1,034,823       
Custodial Court Fund ‐                    ‐                    103,800           42,806             60,994            41.2% 103,800           36,798             67,002             35.5% ‐                    6,008                ‐                    6,008               
Custodial Other Agency Fund ‐                    ‐                    206,805           107,667           99,138            52.1% 206,805           62,675             144,130           30.3% ‐                    44,992             ‐                    44,992            
Total Fiduciary Funds 956,056           1,023,556        326,085           163,933           162,152          50.3% 401,905           101,666           300,239           25.3% (75,820)            62,267             880,236           1,085,823       

TOTAL ALL CITY FUNDS 25,145,078$   25,145,078$   27,260,635$   15,461,347$   11,799,288$  56.7% 29,754,064$   12,115,839$   17,638,225$   40.7% (2,493,429)$    3,345,508$      22,651,649$   28,490,586$  
Note: May contain rounding differences of +/‐1

City of Chehalis
Revenues, Expenditures, and Fund Balances ‐ Budget to Actual

2021 Second Quarter Financial Statements ‐ All Funds
As of June 30, 2021

Beginning Fund Balance Revenues & Transfers Expenditures & Transfers Changes in Fund Balance Ending Fund Balance

M:\FINANCE REPORTS\2021\2021 ‐ 6\2st QTR 2021 financial statement ‐ draft
42



50.00%

GENERAL FUND (#001)

2020 
Amended 
Budget

 YTD Actual 
6/30/2020

2020 
YTD % of 
Budget

2021 
Adopted 
Budget

YTD Actual 
6/30/2021

2021 YTD 
% of 

Budget

^Variance 
YTD Target 
vs. Actual

Change YTD 
Actual 2021-

2020

Revenues:
Taxes:
Property Taxes 1,937,842$    1,074,345$    55.4% 1,980,859$    1,154,912$    58.3% 164,482$     80,567$       
Sales and Use Taxes 4,893,500      2,333,372      47.7% 4,898,100      2,927,719      59.8% 478,669       594,347       
Utility Taxes 1,592,635      830,432         52.1% 1,619,400      869,371         53.7% 59,671         38,939         
Other Taxes 50,168           30,090           60.0% 54,700           28,541           52.2% 1,191           (1,549)          
Total Taxes 8,474,145      4,268,239      50.4% 8,553,059      4,980,543      58.2% 704,013       712,304       

Non-Tax Revenues:
Licenses and Permits 195,780         99,488           50.8% 200,720         205,905         102.6% 105,545       106,417       
Intergovernmental Revenues 882,282         193,917         22.0% 569,035         168,004         29.5% (116,514)     (25,913)        
Charges for Goods & Services 180,670         85,607           47.4% 343,900         125,207         36.4% (46,743)       39,600         
Fines and Forfeitures 120,190         59,111           49.2% 119,400         57,963           48.5% (1,737)         (1,148)          
Miscellaneous 122,669         124,293         101.3% 140,400         88,966           63.4% 18,766         (35,327)        
Total Non-Tax Revenues 1,501,591      562,416         37.5% 1,373,455      646,045         47.0% (40,683)       83,629         

Other Fund Sources:
Transfers-in 51,000           -                     0.0% -                    -                     0.0% -                  -                   
Total Other Fund Sources 51,000           -                     0.0% -                    -                     0.0% -                  -                   

Total Revenues 10,026,736$  4,830,655$    48.2% 9,926,514$    5,626,588$    56.7% 663,330$     795,933$     

Expenditures
Expenditures by Department:
City Council 91,601$         37,836$         41.3% 94,430$         33,625$         35.6% 13,590$       (4,211)$        
Municipal Court 399,558         234,726         58.7% 415,600         201,845         48.6% 5,955           (32,881)        
City Manager 199,081         104,342         52.4% 227,015         98,357           43.3% 15,151         (5,985)          
Finance 286,298         133,325         46.6% 283,635         141,659         49.9% 159              8,334           
City Clerk 85,367           41,190           48.3% 96,925           28,540           29.4% 19,923         (12,650)        
Legal Service 75,673           38,063           50.3% 76,700           38,553           50.3% (203)            490              
Facilities and Parks 1,082,802      541,049         50.0% 1,234,758      644,683         52.2% (27,304)       103,634       
Non-Departmental 534,793         179,567         33.6% 901,644         656,799         72.8% (205,977)     477,232       
Human Resources 139,311         62,125           44.6% 122,250         45,023           36.8% 16,102         (17,102)        
Police 3,337,741      1,628,796      48.8% 3,490,310      1,618,812      46.4% 126,343       (9,984)          
Fire 2,432,267      1,207,431      49.6% 2,369,615      1,118,771      47.2% 66,037         (88,660)        
Public Works - Streets 620,487         251,545         40.5% 571,257         294,811         51.6% (9,182)         43,266         
Planning & Building 698,027         143,922         20.6% 896,605         364,315         40.6% 83,988         220,393       
Recreation 339,790         159,726         47.0% 386,350         115,780         30.0% 77,395         (43,946)        

Total Expenditures 10,322,796    4,763,643      46.1% 11,167,094    5,401,573      48.4% 181,977       637,930       

Excess Revenues Over (Under) 
Expenditures (296,060)$      67,012$         -22.6% (1,240,580)$  225,015$       -18.1% 845,307       158,003$     

Beginning Fund Balance 1,804,262      1,804,262      100.0% 2,240,739      2,240,739      100.0% -                  436,477       

Ending Fund Balance 1,508,202$    1,871,274$    124.1% 1,000,159$    2,465,754$    246.5% 845,307$     594,480$     

Foot Note:
* The target percentage of budget is calculated as the month of reporting (6 for June) divided by the number of months (12) in the year.
^ Variance from YTD target amount to YTD actual amount. Positive variance, if YTD revenue>target amount and YTD expenditure<target amount. 

General Fund

City of Chehalis

YTD Target % * 

Comparative Revenues, Expenditures, and Fund Balances - Budget to Actual
June 2020 and 2021

Page 1
43



50.00%

GENERAL FUND (#001)

2020 
Amended 
Budget

 YTD Actual 
6/30/2020

2020 YTD 
% of 

Budget

2021 
Adopted 
Budget

YTD Actual 
6/30/2021

2021 YTD 
% of 

Budget
2021 YTD 

Target

^Variance 
YTD Target 
vs. Actual

Change YTD 
Actual 2021-

2020

Expenditures by Category:

Salaries 4,970,156$    2,466,561$ 49.6% 5,178,050$   2,377,251$ 45.9% 2,589,025$ 211,774$     (89,310)$      
Benefits 2,207,302      1,056,663   47.9% 2,291,382     1,057,660   46.2% 1,145,691   88,031         997              

Subtotal for Payroll 7,177,458      3,523,224   49.1% 7,469,432     3,434,911   46.0% 3,734,716   299,805       (88,313)        
Supplies 409,893         162,280      39.6% 449,129        205,184      45.7% 224,565      19,381         42,904         
Services 2,635,817      949,821      36.0% 2,729,471     1,288,597   47.2% 1,364,738   76,141         338,776       
Capital Outlay 164,013         78,101        47.6% 130,040        36,102        27.8% 65,020        28,918         (41,999)        
Debt Service 114,432         71,179        62.2% 127,378        70,960        55.7% 63,689        (7,271)          (219)             
Custodial Activity -                    46,291        0.0% -                   3,035          0.0% -                  (3,035)          (43,256)        
Transfers-out 245,332         141,503      57.7% 707,844        586,975      82.9% 353,922      (233,053)      445,472       
Inferfund Charges (424,149)        (208,756)     49.2% (446,200)       (224,191)     50.2% (223,100)     1,091           (15,435)        

Total Expenditures 10,322,796    4,763,643   341.4% 11,167,094   5,401,573   48.4% 5,583,550   181,977       637,930       
-                    -                  -                   -                  -                  -                   -                  

Foot Note:
* The target percentage of budget is calculated as the month of reporting (6 for June) divided by the number of months (12) in the year.
^ Variance from YTD target amount to YTD actual amount. Positive variance, if YTD revenue>target amount and YTD expenditure<target amount. 

General Fund

YTD Target % * 

City of Chehalis
Expenditures by Category - Budget to Actual

June 2020 and 2021

Page 2
44



50.00%

Wastewater Fund (#404)

2020 
Amended 

Budget
 YTD Actual 

6/30/2020

2020 YTD 
% of 

Budget

2021 
Adopted 
Budget

YTD Actual 
6/30/2021

2021 YTD 
% of 

Budget

^Variance 
YTD Target 
vs. Actual

Change 
YTD Actual 
2021-2020

Revenues: 
Operating Revenues:
Charges for Services 5,056,865$  2,596,999$  51.4% 5,082,600$  2,686,840$  52.9% 145,540$     89,841$     
Hookup/Connection Fee 57,920         23,086         39.9% 87,200         56,632         64.9% 13,032        33,546       
Capacity Charge (Cost Share) 277,380       104,017       37.5% 277,400       138,689       50.0% (11)              34,672       
Intergovernmental Revenues 4,400           -                  0.0% -                   -                   0.0% -                  -                 
Late Payment Fees 15,450         14,377         93.1% 51,200         360              0.7% (25,240)       (14,017)      
Interest Earnings 67,250         50,462         75.0% 10,000         2,541           25.4% (2,459)         (47,921)      
Rental Income 3,550           3,545           99.9% 3,500           3,651           104.3% 1,901          106            
Miscellaneous Other 1,540           306              19.9% 1,600           -                   0.0% (800)            (306)           
Total Operating Revenues 5,484,355    2,792,792    50.9% 5,513,500    2,888,713    52.4% 131,963      95,921       

Other Fund Sources:
Custodial Activities -                   480              0.0% -                   -                   0.0% -                  (480)           
Total Other Fund Source -                   480              0.0% -                   -                   0.0% -                  (480)           

Total Revenues & Fund Sources 5,484,355$  2,793,272$  50.9% 5,513,500$  2,888,713$  52.4% 131,963$     95,441$     

Expenditures:
Operating Expenditures:
Wages 1,066,122$  468,836$     44.0% 1,073,200$  534,534$     49.8% 2,066$        65,698$     
Benefits 563,775       235,369       41.7% 560,900       260,966       46.5% 19,484        25,597       
Supplies 438,652       245,745       56.0% 460,866       235,281       51.1% (4,848)         (10,464)      
Services 1,103,176    551,232       50.0% 1,297,334    682,209       52.6% (33,542)       130,977     
Total Operating Expenditures: 3,171,725    1,501,182    47.3% 3,392,300    1,712,990    50.5% (16,840)       211,808     

Other Expenditures:
Capital Outlay 1,071,116    406,517       38.0% 573,300       60,384         10.5% 226,266      (346,133)    
Debt Service 1,879,905    941,642       50.1% 1,882,870    941,462       50.0% (27)              (180)           
Custodial Receipts / Deposits -                   475              0.0% -                   -                   0.0% -                  (475)           
Interfund Loan Disbursements -                   -                  0.0% -                   -                   0.0% -                  -                 
Total Other Expenditures 2,951,021    1,348,634    45.7% 2,456,170    1,001,846    40.8% 226,239      (346,788)    

Total Expenditures 6,122,746$  2,849,816$  46.5% 5,848,470$  2,714,836$  46.4% 209,399$     (134,980)$  

Excess Revenues Over (Under) 
Expenditures (638,391)$    (56,544)$      8.9% (334,970)$    173,877$     -51.9% 341,362$     230,421$   

Beginning Fund Balance 5,374,991    5,374,991    100.0% 5,368,364    5,368,364    100.0% -                  (6,627)        

Ending Fund Balance 4,736,600$  5,318,447$  112.3% 5,033,394$  5,542,241$  110.1% 341,362$     223,794$   

Foot Note:
* The target percentage of budget is calculated as the month of reporting (6 for June) divided by the number of months (12) in the year.
^ Variance from YTD target amount to YTD actual amount. Positive variance, if YTD revenue>target amount and YTD expenditure<target amount. 

City of Chehalis
Comparative Revenues and Expenditures - Budget to Actual

June 2020 and 2021

YTD Target % * 

Wastewater Fund

Page 3

45



50.00%

WATER FUND (#405)

2020 
Amended 

Budget
 YTD Actual 

6/30/2020

2020 YTD 
% of 

Budget

2021 
Adopted 
Budget

YTD Actual 
6/30/2021

2021 YTD 
% of 

Budget

^Variance 
YTD Target 
vs. Actual

Change 
YTD Actual 
2021-2020

Revenues: 
Operating Revenues:
Charges for Services 2,864,810$   1,226,494$  42.8% 2,930,290$   1,277,683$ 43.6% (187,462)$   51,189$      
Hookup/Connectoin Fee 61,770          20,573         33.3% 120,300        65,410        54.4% 5,260          44,837        
Intergovernmental Revenues 5,500            -                   0.0% -                    61               0.0% 61               61               
Late Payment Fees 7,820            7,023           89.8% 33,800          552             1.6% (16,348)       (6,471)        
Interest Earnings 59,120          48,886         82.7% 13,876          8,521          61.4% 1,583          (40,365)      
Other Receipts 230               -                   0.0% 3,200            -                  0.0% (1,600)         -                 
Total Operating Revenues 2,999,250     1,302,976    43.4% 3,101,466     1,352,227   43.6% (198,506)     49,251        

Other Funding Source
Interfund Loan Repayment 69,490          34,582         49.8% 70,911          35,284        49.8% (172)            702             
Customer Deposits -                    -                   0.0% 90,420          14,203        15.7% (31,007)       14,203        
Other Resources -                    4,118           0.0% 1,100            4,849          440.8% 4,299          731             
Total Other Fund Source 69,490          38,700         55.7% 162,431        54,336        33.5% (26,880)       15,636        

Total Revenues & Fund Sources 3,068,740$   1,341,676$  43.7% 3,263,897$   1,406,563$ 43.1% (225,386)$   64,887$      

Expenditures
Operating Expenditures
Wages 848,476$      395,510$     46.6% 899,620$      402,517$    44.7% 47,293        7,007          
Benefits 430,881        186,469       43.3% 447,700        192,920      43.1% 30,930        6,451          
Supplies 344,456        150,909       43.8% 336,336        120,430      35.8% 47,738        (30,479)      
Services 718,738        392,231       54.6% 774,799        352,529      45.5% 34,871        (39,702)      
Total Operating Expenditures 2,342,551     1,125,119    48.0% 2,458,455     1,068,396   43.5% 160,832      (56,723)      

Other Expenditures
Capital Expenditures 2,262,297     125,945       5.6% 1,176,200     136,411      11.6% 451,689      10,466        
Debt Service 286,278        1,730           0.6% 238,852        1,482          0.6% 117,944      (248)           
Refunds of Deposits -                    -                   0.0% 42,800          32,005        74.8% (10,605)       32,005        
Total Other Expenditures 2,548,575     127,675       5.0% 1,457,852     169,898      11.7% 559,028      42,223        

Total Expenditures 4,891,126$   1,252,794$  25.6% 3,916,307$   1,238,294$ 31.6% 719,860$    (14,500)$    

Excess Revenues Over (Under) 
Expenditures (1,275,134)$  88,882$       -7.0% (652,410)$     168,269$    -25.8% 494,474$    79,387$      

Beginning Fund Balance 7,437,091     7,437,091    100.0% 7,990,124     7,990,124   100.0% -                  553,033      

Ending Fund Balance 6,161,957$   7,525,973$  122.1% 7,337,714$   8,158,393$ 111.2% 494,474$    632,420$    

Foot Note:
* The target percentage of budget is calculated as the month of reporting (6 for June) divided by the number of months (12) in the year.
^ Variance from YTD target amount to YTD actual amount. Positive variance, if YTD revenue>target amount and YTD expenditure<target amount. 

City of Chehalis
Comparative Revenues and Expenditures - Budget to Actual

June 2020 and 2021

YTD Target % * 

Water Fund

Page 4

46



50.00%

Storm Water Fund (#406)

2020 
Amended 

Budget
 YTD Actual 

6/30/2020

2020 YTD 
% of 

Budget

2021 
Adopted 
Budget

YTD Actual 
6/30/2021

2021 YTD 
% of 

Budget

^Variance 
YTD Target 
vs. Actual

Change YTD 
Actual 2021-

2020

Revenues: 
Operating Revenues:
Charges for Goods & Services 677,015$     364,025$     53.8% 677,015$     357,945$     52.9% 19,437$        (6,080)$        
Hookup/Connection Fee 4,750           1,516           31.9% 29,750         7,751           26.1% (7,124)           6,235           
Intergovernmental Revenue 3,100           -                   0.0% -                   -                   0.0% -                   -                   
Late Payment Fees 2,200           2,060           93.6% 6,700           -                   0.0% (3,350)           (2,060)          
Interest Earnings 9,230           7,152           77.5% 3,000           778              25.9% (722)              (6,374)          
Other Misc. Revenues -                   -                   0.0% -                   343              0.0% 343               343              
Total Operating Revenues 696,295       374,753       53.8% 716,465       366,817       51.2% 8,584            (7,936)          

Other Fund Sources:
Custodial Activities -                   -                   0.0% -                   -                   0.0% -                   -                   
Total Other Fund Sources -                   -                   0.0% -                   -                   0.0% -                   -                   

Total Revenues & Fund Sources 696,295$     374,753$     53.8% 716,465$     366,817$     51.2% 8,584$          (7,936)$        

Expenditures:
Operating Expenditures:
Wages 259,451$     143,923$     55.5% 262,750$     99,035$       37.7% 32,340$        (44,888)$      
Benefits 131,530       66,260         50.4% 147,410       60,781         41.2% 12,924          (5,479)          
Supplies 60,852         30,236         49.7% 66,384         10,791         16.3% 22,401          (19,445)        
Services 64,250         33,676         52.4% 74,454         32,276         43.4% 4,951            (1,400)          
Total Operating Expenditures 516,083       274,095       53.1% 550,998       202,883       36.8% 72,616          (71,212)        

Other Expenditures:
Capital Expenditures 175,200       -                   0.0% 393,498       4,271           1.1% 192,478        4,271           
Debt Service -                   118              0.0% 404              202              50.0% -                   84                
Custodial Activities -                   -                   0.0% -                   -                   0.0% -                   -                   
Total Other Expenditures 175,200       118              0.1% 393,902       4,473           1.1% 192,478        4,355           

Total Expenditures 691,283       274,213       39.7% 944,900       207,356       21.9% 265,094        (66,857)        

Excess Revenues Over (Under) 
Expenditures 5,012$         100,540$     2006.0% (228,435)$    159,461$     -69.8% 273,678$      58,921$       

Beginning Fund Balance 1,264,662    1,264,662    100.0% 1,699,119    1,699,119    100.0% -                   434,457       

Ending Fund Balance 1,269,674$  1,365,202$  107.5% 1,470,684$  1,858,580$  126.4% 273,678$      493,378$     

Foot Note:

^ Variance from YTD target amount to YTD actual amount. Positive variance, if YTD revenue>target amount and YTD expenditure<target amount. 

City of Chehalis
Comparative Revenues and Expenditures - Budget to Actual

June 2020 and 2021

* The target percentage of budget is calculated as the month of reporting (6 for June) divided by the number of months (12) in the year.

YTD Target % * 

Storm and Surface Water Fund

Page 5
47



50.00%

Airport Fund (#407)

2020 
Amended 

Budget
 YTD Actual 

6/30/2020

2020 
YTD % 

of 
Budget

2021 
Adopted 
Budget

YTD Actual 
6/30/2021

2021 YTD 
% of 

Budget

^Variance 
YTD Target 
vs. Actual

Change YTD 
Actual 2021-

2020

Revenues: 
Operating Revenues:
Fuel sales 675,000$     365,708$     54.2% 650,000$    308,325$      47.4% (16,675)$      (57,383)$      
Rents & Leases 1,142,694    551,332      48.2% 1,197,961   608,317        50.8% 9,336           56,985         
Other Misc. Revenues 1,950           175             9.0% 1,950          225              11.5% (750)             50                
Late Payment Fees -                   89               0.0% -                  -                   0.0% -                   (89)               
Interest Earnings 9,750           6,705          68.8% 3,000          695              23.2% (805)             (6,010)          
Total Operating Revenues 1,829,394    924,009      50.5% 1,852,911   917,562        49.5% (8,894)          (6,447)          

Other Fund Sources:
Intergovernmental - Capital Grants 321,684       176,531      54.9% 1,346,070   449,071        33.4% (223,964)      272,540       
Custodial Activities 15,256         116,047      760.7% -                  53,750          0.0% 53,750         (62,297)        
Interfund Loan Receipts -                   -                  0.0% -                  -                   0.0% -                   -                   
Proceeds from Sale of Capital Assets -                   -                  0.0% -                  -                   0.0% -                   -                   
Debt Proceeds (Bonds/Loans) 500,000       -                  0.0% 750,000      362,760        48.4% (12,240)        362,760       
Total Other Fund Sources 836,940       292,578      35.0% 2,096,070   865,581        41.3% (182,454)      573,003       

Total Revenues & Fund Sources 2,666,334$  1,216,587$  45.6% 3,948,981$ 1,783,143$   45.2% (191,348)$    566,556$     

Expenditures:
Wages 312,092$     150,139$     48.1% 317,700$    170,752$      53.7% (11,902)$      20,613$       
Benefits 179,291       81,049        45.2% 153,800      81,339          52.9% (4,439)          290              
Supplies 592,480       308,795      52.1% 576,300      264,371        45.9% 23,779         (44,424)        
Services 233,890       110,755      47.4% 209,195      120,874        57.8% (16,276)        10,119         
Total Operating Expenditures 1,317,753    650,738      49.4% 1,256,995   637,336        50.7% (8,838)          (13,402)        

Other Expenditures:
Capital Expenditures 850,375       57,840        6.8% 2,048,553   319,952        15.6% 704,325       262,112       
Debt Service 99,795         15,152        15.2% 51,559        37,451          72.6% (11,671)        22,299         
Custodial Activities 100,076       56,673        56.6% -                  -                   0.0% -                   (56,673)        
Interfund Loan Payment 69,490         34,582        49.8% 70,911        35,284          49.8% 172              702              
Total Other Expenditures 1,119,736    164,247      14.7% 2,171,023   392,687        18.1% 692,826       228,440       

Total Expenditures 2,437,489$  814,985$     33.4% 3,428,018$ 1,030,023$   30.0% 683,988$     215,038$     

Excess Revenues Over (Under) 
Expenditures 160,163$     401,602$     250.7% 520,963$    753,120$      144.6% 492,640$     351,518$     

Beginning Fund Balance 1,051,418    1,051,418    100.0% 1,391,726   1,391,726     100.0% -                   340,308       

Ending Fund Balance 1,211,581$  1,453,020$  119.9% 1,912,689$ 2,144,846$   112.1% 492,640$     691,826$     

Foot Note:
* The target percentage of budget is calculated as the month of reporting (6 for June) divided by the number of months (12) in the year.
^ Variance from YTD target amount to YTD actual amount. Positive variance, if YTD revenue>target amount and YTD expenditure<target amount. 

Airport Fund

YTD Target % * 

City of Chehalis
Comparative Revenues and Expenditures - Budget to Actual

June 2020 and 2021

Page 6
48


	11   07-22-21 Dravt V. 2  Agenda Rpt Snively Reconstruction Eng Services  XWAC No. 2 R1- Agenda Report.pdf
	RECOMMENDATION
	SUGGESTED MOTION

	12bb   Agenda Report - 2021 2nd Qtr Financial Report - Attach.pdf
	Quarterly Report Cover
	2st QTR 2021 financial statement - draft
	Chehalis 2021 - 6 draft

	Blank Page
	Agenda Cover Sheet.pdf
	CITIZENS BUSINESS (PUBLIC COMMENT)
	CONSENT CALENDAR
	NEW BUSINESS
	ADMINISTRATION AND CITY COUNCIL REPORTS  
	EXECUTIVE SESSION

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



